
 
 
 
 
 

Board of 
Commissioners 

 
  

Dist. 1: Si Trujillo 
Chairman 

505-617-6893 
strujillo@co.colfax.nm.us 

Dist. 2: Mary Lou Kern 
Vice Chair 

505-617-6895 
kern@co.colfax.nm.us 

Dist. 3: Bret E. Wier 
Member 

505-652-0039 
bwier@co.colfax.nm.us 

 

County Manager – Monte K. Gore 
mgore@co.colfax.nm.us 

P.O. Box 1498 
Raton, New Mexico 87740 

Office. 575-445-9661 
Fax. 575-445-2902 

www.co.colfax.nm.us 
 

 

 

Notice 
Public Hearing 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Colfax County Commissioners will be Discussing 
Colfax County Ordinance #2024-03, An Ordinance to The Amendment to Section Four Point One (4.1) of 
the Colfax County Personnel Policy and Procedures, Ordinance 2017-01, and Ordinance 2024-04, An 
Ordinance Establishing an Affordable Housing Program Pursuant to The Colfax County Affordable 
Housing Plan; Defining Terms; Establishing Application Requirements and Review Criteria; And 
Establishing Procedures to Administer an Affordable Housing Program in the 3rd Floor Commission 
Chambers, of the Colfax County Building on Tuesday, June 25, 2024, at 8:30 am. 

 
 

Copies of the proposed ordinances are available for inspection on the County website @ 
www.co.colfax.nm.us or at the Office of the County Manger, Colfax County Building, 230 North 3rd 
Raton NM during regular business hour. 

 
Done this 18th Day of June 2024 

http://www.co.colfax.nm.us/
http://www.co.colfax.nm.us/


Board of 

Commissioners 

Dist. 1: Si Trujillo 

Chairman 

505-617-6893

strujillo@co.co lfax. nm .us 

Dist. 2: Mary Lou Kern 

Vice Chair 

505-617-6895

kern@co.colfax.nm.us 

Regular Meeting 

June 25, 2024 

AGENDA 

Colfax Co11nty 

Dist. 3: Bret E. Wier 

Member 

505-652-0039

bwier@co.colfax.nm.us 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Colfax County Board of Commissioners will meet in 
Regular Session on Tuesday, June 25, 2024, at 9:00 A.M., in the Commission Chambers, 3rd Floor at the 
Colfax County Building, Raton, NM for the following 

This agenda can be viewed at the Colfax County Website at www.co.colfax.nm.us

I . Cal I to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Salute to the New Mexico Flag
4. Approve Agenda
5. Approve Public Hearing Meeting Minutes, Special Meeting Minutes and Regular Meeting 

Minutes for June 11, 2024
6. Recognize visitors
7. Public Comment
8. Discuss/Approve -Indigent Care Claims
9. Discuss/Action - Claim of Exemption #12, Maxwell Municipal Schools
10. Discuss/ Action -Claim of Exemption #7, Cross Diamond Cattle Co. LLC
11. Discuss/ Action - Lodger's Tax Promotional & Non-Promotional Funding Request, Colfax 

Tavern, Run2Raton Kickoff Party
12. Discuss/Action -State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local 

Government Division DWl Program, DWI Grant Agreement Program No. 25-D-G-05
13. Discuss/Action -Colfax County DWI Prevention Specialist Contract Between Colfax County and 

Danielle Jo Martinez
14. Discuss/Action -Colfax County DWI Program Compliance Officer Contract Between Colfax 

County and Jessica Candelario
15. Discuss/ Action -Colfax County DWI Program Coordinator Contract Between Colfax County and 

Ambrosia Trujillo
16. Discuss/ Action - Colfax County DWI Treatment Provider Contract Between Colfax County and 

Tenelle Phillips
17. Discuss/Action - Independent Contractor Agreement Between VMDC and Leona M Herrell 

FNPC, PMHNP-BC
18. Discuss/ Action -Resolution # 2024-22, A Resolution Adopting the 2026-2030 Infrastructure 

Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP)
19. Discuss/Action -Permission for Access -New Contract, CPMS User Access Form for Additional 

ICIP User
20. Discuss/ Action - Regional Recreation Centers/Quality of Life Grant Amendment No. 1, Colfax 

County Event Center Upgrades, 23-ZH5053- l 2

P.O. Box 1498 

County Manager - Monte K. Gore 

mgore@co.co lfax. nm .us 

Raton, New Mexico 87740 

Office. 575-445-9661 

Fax. 575-445-2902 

www.co.colfax.nm.us 





 
 
 
 
 

Board of 
Commissioners 

 
  

Dist. 1: Si Trujillo 
Chairman 

505-617-6893 
strujillo@co.colfax.nm.us 

Dist. 2: Mary Lou Kern 
Vice Chair 

505-617-6895 
kern@co.colfax.nm.us 

Dist. 3: Bret E. Wier 
Member 

505-652-0039 
bwier@co.colfax.nm.us 

 

County Manager – Monte K. Gore 
mgore@co.colfax.nm.us 

P.O. Box 1498 
Raton, New Mexico 87740 

Office. 575-445-9661 
Fax. 575-445-2902 

www.co.colfax.nm.us 
 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO 2024-03 
 

THE AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE SECTION FOUR POINT ONE (4.1) OF THE 
COLFAX COUNTY PERSONNEL POLICY AND PROCEDURES ORDINANCE 2017-01                  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, by virtue of the power vested in us duly elected members of the Board of the 
Commissioners of Colfax County, New Mexico, under the Laws of the State of New Mexico, we do 
hereby approve, ratify, adopt, and amend Section 4.1 of Ordinance No. 2017-01, the Colfax County, 
Personnel Policy, and Procedures as follows:  
 
Section 4.1   Compensation 
Elected officials' salary increases shall be governed by N.M.S.A. 1978. Section 4-44-12.3, or as it may be 
subsequently amended. 
 
The restriction on First Deputy salaries has been removed. 

A compensation plan for classified employees shall be adopted or amended as necessary by the Board of 
County Commissioners. Such a plan shall establish a schedule containing a minimum and maximum pay 
range for each position in the classified service. 

 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this day of ____, 2024. 
   

 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF COLFAX COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  

  
______________________________    
 Si Trujillo, Chairman  
 
______________________________    ATTEST: 
 Mary Lou Kern, Vice Chair 
        ________________________________ 
______________________________                 Rayetta M. Trujillo, Clerk of The Board 
Bret Wier, Member 

http://www.co.colfax.nm.us/
































































I further cenify thai the infom1atioo provided by me in this Claim of Exemption is true and 
correct and that all documents attached to or enclosed with this Claim of Exemprjon are originals 
or L-ue, complete and c e originals. 

COUNTY OF COLFAX ) 
)SS. 

STATEOFNEWMEXICO) 

SUBSCRµJED AN�WOR � m•::�11 bl Ou !!U...,
20 2t.f by �rud���fLku 

�t(LAitt 
My commission expires: __ o_l_'.3_,/�:,L-r7_7 _______ _

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF NATUR.L\l PERSONS 

ST A TE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
)SS. 

COUNTY OF COLFAX ) 

NIKOLE M ALDERETTE 
Notary Public · State of New Mexico 

Commission # 1123919 
My Comm. Expires Mar 8, 2027 

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me on __________ . 
20 ____ by ______________ _ 

Notary Public 

Yiy commission expires: ____________ _ 









































































































 
 

Revised: April 2022 

 STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
 Department of Finance and Administration 
 LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION 
 
 GRANT-IN-AID AGREEMENT SIGN-OFF 
 
 
 
Grantee: Colfax County                                Grant No. 25-D-G-05 
  
Type:     [ ] Original Agreement    [ ] Amendment 
 
Program: [X] Local DWI Grant Program 
 

[  ] Other         
 

Documents included for Agreement                  Documents included for Amendment           
  Sign off sheet              Sign off sheet 
  Cover letter              Cover letter 
  Grant Agreement              Grant Amendment 
  Exhibit A               Exhibit A (if applicable) 
  Exhibit B               Exhibit C 
  Exhibit C               Exhibit D & D(1) 
  Exhibit D & D(1)               
  Exhibit G 
  

                                        
 
This Grant-In-Aid Agreement has been reviewed and approved by: 
 
    Signature    Date 
 

1. Program Manager              _______________________  ____________ 
 

2. Supervisor            _______________________  ____________ 
 

 
 

   
 
Comments:                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                                            

                                                 

5/23/2024

5/23/24

Judith Lovato
Inserted Text
5/*23



  Local Government Division 
 Jeannette Gallegos, Acting Director 

VIA EMAIL 

Governor Michelle Lujan Grisham    
Cabinet Secretary Wayne Propst 

May 23, 2024 

The Honorable Commissioner Si Trujillo 
Colfax County Commission Chair 
230 N. 3rd Street  
Raton, NM 87740 

Through Ambrosia Trujillo, DWI Coordinator  

Dear Commissioner Trujillo: 

Attached is the Local Driving While Intoxicated (LDWI) Grant Agreement for the County DWI Program, #25-
D-G-05 for your review and approval.  Please note that an original wet or electronic authorized signature is
required on page 8 of the Agreement.  Once signed, return the Agreement to the LDWI Program Manager for
execution.  We will return to you the fully executed Agreement for your files.

Reimbursement requests for expenditures must be completed on the approved LDWI Program forms and 
include back up documentation for each expenditure.  

If you have any questions or require additional information, please call Judy Lovato, LDWI Program Manager 
at (505) 500-9866 or email at judith.lovato@dfa.nm.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Julie Fernandez, LDWI Bureau Chief 
Local Government Division  

Cc:  Monte Gore, County Manager 
Jeannette Gallegos, Acting Division Director 



 

 
      -1- 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION 
DWI GRANT PROGRAM 

 
DWI GRANT AGREEMENT 

Program No.  25-D-G-05 
 

 
THIS GRANT AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the Department of 

Finance and Administration, State of New Mexico, acting through the Local Government Division, Bataan 
Memorial Building, Suite 201, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501, hereinafter called the “Division,” and the 
County of Colfax, hereinafter called the “Grantee,” collectively called “the Parties.”. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, this Grant Agreement is made by and between the Department of Finance and 
Administration, State of New Mexico, acting through the Local Government Division, and the Grantee, 
pursuant to the Local Driving While Intoxicated (“LDWI”) Grant Program Act Sections 11-6A-1 through 
11-6A-6, NMSA 1978, as amended (the “Act”) and the LDWI Grant Program Regulations 2.110.4 NMAC 
(the “Regulations”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 1, 2024 the DWI Grant Council awarded the Grantee $35,000.00 to support 

programs, services and activities to reduce the incidence of driving while intoxicated, alcoholism, and 
alcohol abuse in New Mexico (“Program”); and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties mutually agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF WORK 
 

A. The Grantee agrees that it will implement, in all respects, the activities outlined in its 
Program Description, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and made a part of this Grant 
Agreement. 

 
B. The Grantee agrees to make no change to the Program Description herein described without 

first submitting a written request to the Division and obtaining the Division's written 
approval of the proposed change. 

 
ARTICLE II - LENGTH OF GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

A. The term of this Grant Agreement shall become effective July 1, 2024 and will terminate 
on June 30, 2025. 

 
B. The General Appropriation Act of 2024, Section 3, General Provisions (C) states: 

“Amounts set out in Section 4 of the General Appropriation Act of 2024, or so much as 
may be necessary, are appropriated from the indicated source for expenditure in the fiscal 
year 2025for the objects expressed”.  Per Section 11-6A-6(E) of the Act, any unexpended 
funds at the end of a fiscal year revert to the Local DWI Grant Fund.  

 
 



 

 
      -2- 

ARTICLE III - REPORTS 
 

A. Evaluation  
 

1. The Grantee agrees to systematically collect, analyze, and use data to examine 
programs, initiatives and policies by looking at both the process and the outcomes 
to assess their effectiveness.  The Grantee agrees to review and update the existing 
evaluation plan periodically throughout the fiscal year.   
  

2. The Grantee agrees that data entered into the DWI Screening Program, which 
includes the Managerial Data Set (MDS) Database, is complete, accurate and 
allows the Department of Finance and Administration’s (DFA) designated 
evaluation contractor to develop and implement an evaluation system and/or to 
provide relevant reports derived from the available data. 

 
3. In order that the Division may adequately evaluate the progress of the Local DWI 

grant program statewide, the Grantee shall provide within 30 days, upon request 
of DFA’s evaluator(s), information and access to program records and records of 
contractors working for the Grantee, provided that such information will not 
contain any “individually identifiable health information” as defined by the 
Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR 
Parts 160 and 164, the Regulations promulgated by the Department of Health and 
Human Services pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act of 1996 (“HIPAA” or “HIPAA Regulations”). 

 
B. Progress Reports 

 
1. In order that the Division may adequately evaluate the progress of the Grant 

Agreement, the Grantee shall provide periodic quarterly Progress Reports to the 
Division.  The Progress Reports shall contain a narrative and/or bulleted highlights 
of successes and challenges, a detailed budget breakdown of expenditures to date 
which includes expenditure back-up documentation, a summary of screening fees 
collected and/or expended, the DWI Screening Program Quarterly Report, the 
MDS Quarterly Report, LDWI Planning Council meeting agendas and minutes, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (Quarterly Progress Report and Certification), and 
such other information following the objectives of the Grantee's evaluation as may 
be of assistance to the Division in its evaluation.  The first quarterly Progress 
Report is due October 31, 2024. 
 

2. Grantee assures that Progress Reports submitted to the Division will not contain 
any “individually identifiable health information” in accordance with HIPAA. 
 

3. One copy of the corresponding quarterly Progress Report shall be submitted to the 
Division no later than October 31, 2024, January 31, 2025, and April 30, 2025 
for review and comment. 

 
C. Final Report 

 
1. The Grantee shall submit to the Division one copy of the Final Report for this 

Program.  The Final Report shall include the information called for in Article III, 



-3-

Paragraph B(1) and B(2) for the fourth quarter. This requirement shall survive the 
termination of this Grant Agreement. 

2. The Final Report and final reimbursement shall include sufficient detail to evaluate
the effectiveness of each program component in the Program and shall be
submitted no later than July 10, 2025.

D. Annual Report

1. The Grantee shall submit to the Division one copy of the Annual Report for this
Program. The Annual Report shall include the data from the DWI Screening
Program, including the demographic profile of the DWI offender and the MDS
data reports for the entire term of the Grant Agreement, highlights for the period,
and other information requested by the Division, in the format provided by the
Division. This requirement shall survive the termination of this Grant Agreement.

2. The Annual Report shall be submitted no later than the date determined by the
DWI Bureau Chief.

ARTICLE IV - CONSIDERATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT 

A. In consideration of the Grantee's satisfactory completion of all work and services required 
to be performed under the terms of this Grant Agreement, and in compliance with all other 
Grant Agreement requirements herein stated, the Division shall pay the Grantee a sum not 
to exceed Thirty-Five Thousand Dollars and no Cents ($35,000.00).  The funds are to 
be expended in accordance with the proposed budget attached as Exhibits “C” and “C (1)”, 
which by this reference are fully incorporated into this Grant Agreement.  It is understood 
and agreed that the Grantee's expenditure of these monies shall not deviate from the line 
items of the budget without the prior written approval of the Division.

B. It is understood and agreed that if any portion of the funds set forth in Paragraph IV (A) 
are not expended at the completion of this Grant Agreement period for the purpose 
designated in this Grant Agreement, the unexpended funds shall revert to the Division for 
disposition.

C. All payments will be made on a reimbursement of actual cost basis upon receipt by the 
Division of individual quarterly Progress Reports accompanied by the following completed 
forms: Request for Payment Form, attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and “D(1)”; and Detailed 
Breakdown By Budget Line Item Form, including Screening Fees Collected, attached 
hereto as Exhibit “G.”  Request for Payment Forms shall specify all in-kind administrative 
costs and any capital expenditures.

D. Payment shall be made only for those services specified in this Grant Agreement and not 
funded by any other public-entity funding source.  The Grantee shall not bill the Division 
for the same service or services billed to another funding agency or source.

ARTICLE V - MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION 

A. The Division, by written notice to the Grantee, shall have the right to immediately



 

 
      -4- 

terminate this Grant Agreement at any time if, in the judgment of the Division, the 
provisions of this Grant Agreement are violated, or the activities described in the Program 
Description do not progress satisfactorily.  In this regard, the Division may demand a 
refund of all or part of the funds dispersed to the Grantee. 

 
B. The Parties may modify any and all terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement by mutual 

written agreement. 
 
C. Early Termination for Convenience:  Except as provided in Article X, Appropriations, and 

Article V, Paragraph A, above, either the Division or Grantee may terminate this Grant 
Agreement by providing the other party with a minimum of thirty (30) days’ advance, 
written notice of the termination. 

 
D. Liability in the Event of Early Termination:  In the event of early termination of this Grant 

Agreement by either party, the Division’s sole liability shall be to reimburse Grantee in 
accordance with this Grant Agreement for qualifying expenditures that were: 
a. Incurred pursuant to a legally binding agreement entered into by Grantee before 

Grantee’s receipt of the Division’s notice of early termination or the issuance by the 
Grantee of a notice of early termination;  

b. Incurred on or before the termination date in the notice of early termination;  
c. For permissible purposes under this Grant Agreement’s Program Description and 

procured and executed in accordance with applicable law; and 
d. The subject of a Request for Payment Form properly and timely submitted in 

accordance with Article IV of this Grant Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATION 
 
The Grantee hereby assures and certifies that it will comply with all State regulations, policies, guidelines, 
and requirements with respect to the acceptance and use of State funds.  Also, the Grantee gives assurances 
and certifies with respect to the grant that: 

 
A. It has the legal authority to receive and expend the funds as described in the Program 

Description. 
 

B. It shall meet all requirements of the Act and the Regulations and all other New Mexico 
State laws and regulations as they pertain to all activity conducted under this Grant 
Agreement and provide verification thereof to the Division. 

 
C. It shall finance all costs of the Program, including all Program overruns. 
 
D. Every treatment facility, program or other provider it contracts with to perform the 

activities that are subject to this Grant Agreement, shall, at all times, comply with all 
applicable State and federal laws and regulations and any and all licensure requirements 
governing treatment facilities, programs, or providers.  All Contracts shall contain the 
following provision: “The Contractor agrees to comply, at all times, with all applicable 
State and federal laws and regulations and any and all licensure requirements governing its 
program and facility.”  The Grantee agrees it shall be solely liable for the failure of any of 
its providers to meet and comply with all applicable State and federal laws and licensure 
requirements governing the treatment provider or the program. 

 



 

 
      -5- 

E. It shall comply with the State Procurement Code, Sections 13-1-28 through 13-1-199, 
NMSA 1978.  All professional services, activities or programs provided through a service 
provider must be implemented through a professional service contract.  The Grantee will 
submit all Program related contracts, and agreements to the Division for review and 
approval prior to execution. Amendments to existing contracts must also be 
submitted to the Division for review and approval prior to execution. 

 
Without limiting the foregoing, Grantee shall be required to complete a request-for-
proposal (RFP) for contracts over $60,000; provided, however, that if the Grantee’s 
governing body’s guidelines have more stringent requirements, the Grantee’s governing 
body’s guidelines must be followed.  Sole Source contracts can be utilized if written 
justification is provided confirming that the organization is the only one in the area that 
can provide the services, which are uniquely and substantially related to the intended 
purpose of the contract.  The Grantee shall be required to submit to the Division written 
documentation describing the reason(s) for sole source contracting prior to entering into 
the contract. Grantee shall adhere to all applicable provisions and requirements set forth in 
the State Procurement Code.  

  
F. It will adhere to all financial and accounting requirements of the Department of Finance 

and Administration. 
 

G. It will comply with all applicable conditions and requirements prescribed by the Division 
in relation to receipt of State DWI grant funds. 

 
H. It shall not at any time utilize or convert any equipment or property acquired or developed 

pursuant to this Grant Agreement for any use other than those specified in the scope of 
work as defined in the Grant Agreement without the prior approval of the Division. 

 
I. No member, officer, employee, or family member(s) of the Grantee, or its designees or 

agents, no member of the governing body of the locality in which the program is situated, 
and no other public official of such locality or localities who exercises any functions or 
responsibilities with respect to the program during his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, 
shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract, or the process thereof, for work 
to be performed in connection with the program assisted under the grant, and the Grantee 
shall incorporate, in all such contracts, a provision prohibiting such interest pursuant to the 
purposes of this certification. 

 
J. It will comply with all applicable HIPAA requirements and regulations. 
 

 
ARTICLE VII - RETENTION OF RECORDS 
 
All Program records must adhere to the New Mexico State Records Center and Archives Rule for Functional 
Retention and Disposition Schedule, 1.21.2 NMAC. The Grantee shall keep such records as will fully 
disclose the amount and disposition of the total funds from all sources budgeted for the Grant Agreement 
period, the purpose for which such funds were used, the amount and nature of all contributions from other 
sources, and such other records as the Division shall prescribe.   
 
 
 



 

 
      -6- 

 
ARTICLE VIII - REPRESENTATIVES 
 

A. The Grantee hereby designates the person listed below as the official Grantee 
Representative responsible for overall supervision of the approved Program: 

       
Name:   Ambrosia Trujillo      

  Title:   Program Coordinator 
Address: 112 N 3rd Street  

Raton, NM. 87740          
 
 

  Phone:   (575) 446-0672 
  Email:    atrujillo@co.colfax.nm.us 
  

B. The Division designates the person listed below as its Program Manager, responsible for 
overall administration of this Grant Agreement, including compliance and monitoring of 
Grantee:  
 
Name:  Judy Lovato                        
Title:  DWI Program Manager        
Address: Department of Finance and Administration 
  Local Government Division 
  Bataan Memorial Building, Suite 203 
  Santa Fe, NM 87501        
          
Phone:  (505)  500 -9866 
Email:  judith.lovato@dfa.nm.gov 

   
    
ARTICLE IX - SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 
A. The Grantee shall budget and expend a minimum of 10 percent of the total DWI grant 

funding awarded for the twelve-month period in local match/in-kind monies.  The Grantee 
shall not budget administrative expenses except as in-kind match pursuant to the DWI 
Grant Council’s administrative policy.  The Grantee hereby budgets Five Thousand Seven  
Hundred Fifty Dollars and No Cents ($5,750.00) (16.43%) as its matching funds 
commitment.   
 

B. The Grantee shall not budget, nor at any time exceed, expenditures greater than ten percent 
of its overall grant funding for capital purchases incurred during the grant period.   

 
C.      The Grantee shall submit to the Division written copies of the description of the treatment 

program protocol by July 31, 2024, for review and comment.  All changes and 
modifications made to the treatment program, including its materials, shall be reported to 
the Division for its review and comment, as necessary. 

 
D. The Grantee shall submit to the Division written copies of the description of the screening 

program protocol by July 31, 2024, for review and comment.  All changes and 
modifications made to the screening program, including its materials, shall be reported to 



 

 
      -7- 

the Division for its review and comment. 
 

E. The Grantee shall submit to the Division written copies of the description of the 
compliance monitoring program protocol by July 31, 2024, for review and comment.  
All changes and modifications made to the compliance monitoring program, including its 
materials, shall be reported to the Division for its review and comment. 

 
F.   The Grantee shall submit LDWI Planning Council by-laws by July 31, 2024. 
 
G.       The Grantee shall enter screening and tracking data online in the DWI Screening 

Program.  Data shall be entered and maintained, at a minimum on a quarterly basis.  
 
H.       The Grantee shall enter the prevention and enforcement goals and activities online in 

the MDS database.  Data shall be entered and maintained on a quarterly basis.   
 

I.   The Grantee shall be solely responsible for fiscal or other sanctions, penalties, or fines 
occasioned as a result of its own violation or alleged violation of requirements applicable 
to performance of this Grant Agreement.  The Grantee shall be liable for its acts or failure 
to act in accordance with this Grant Agreement, subject to the immunities and limitations 
of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, Sections 41-4-1 through 41-4-27, NMSA 1978.  

 
 
ARTICLE X - APPROPRIATIONS 
 
The terms of this Grant Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization being 
made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of the Grant Agreement.  If sufficient 
appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Legislature, the Division may immediately terminate 
this Grant Agreement, in whole or in part, regardless of any existing legally binding third-party contracts 
entered into by or between Grantee and a third party, by giving Grantee written notice of such early 
termination.  The Division’s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be accepted 
by the Grantee and shall be final and non-appealable.  The Grantee shall include a substantively identical 
clause in all contracts between the Grantee and third parties that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds 
made available under this Grant Agreement and (ii) entered into between the effective date of this Grant 
Agreement and the Termination Date or early termination date. 
 
 
ARTICLE XI – REQUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS FUNDED IN WHOLE 
OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
Grantee shall include the following or a substantially similar termination clause in all contracts that are (i) 
funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Grant Agreement and (ii) entered into after the 
effective date of this Grant Agreement: 
 
 “This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available under a Department of Finance 
and Administration, Local Government Division (Division) grant agreement.  If the Division terminates the 
grant agreement, the County of Colfax may terminate this contract by providing contractor written notice 
of such termination in accordance with the notice provisions in this contract.  In the event of termination 
pursuant to this paragraph, the County of Colfax’s only liability shall be to pay contractor for acceptable 
goods and/or services delivered and accepted prior to the termination date.” 

 



 

 
      -8- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantee and the Division do hereby execute this Grant Agreement. 
 
 

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT has been approved by: 
 

 
COLFAX COUNTY 
 
 
 
By:                                                        _________________ 

Authorized Signatory                                 Date 
 
 
                                                                                 
(Type or Print Name and Position Title) 
 
 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                    __________________ 

 Jeannette Gallegos, Acting Director    Date 
 

 
  



 

 
      -9- 

EXHIBIT “A” 
    
 PROGRAM DESCRIPTION 
 
   Name of Grantee: Colfax 
   Grant No.: 25-D-G-05 
   Grant Amount:  $35,000.00 
 
          Grantee will provide DWI program activities in the following areas: 
  

1. Community Wellness & Outreach 
Programs and services in this component play a pivotal role in improving the community’s health and 
safety by promoting knowledge, healthy practices, resilience, and well-being. 
 
Prevention programs shall focus on the prevention of alcoholism, alcohol abuse, underage drinking, 
alcohol related domestic violence and DWI. Prevention activities funded with LDWI funds should be 
either evidence-based or promising activities. DWI programs must be able to document compliance with 
this requirement. Activities funded by LDWI will be shown to increase life skills and/or decrease risk 
factors that positively impact the rates of DWI and/or alcohol abuse through assessment, capacity, 
planning, implementation, and evaluation.  
 
Overtime for law enforcement officers to support DWI operations such as sobriety checkpoints, directed 
patrols, warrant round ups and underage drinking enforcement may be supported through the LDWI 
program.   
 
Teen Court is limited to $40,000 of LDWI funds. All Teen Courts funded through the LDWI program 
must adhere to the Juvenile Adjudication Fund Guidelines, which can be found on the DFA website.  
 
The LDWI funding supports evaluation of the progress and impact of this component.  
 
 

2. Treatment  
The LDWI funding supports outpatient and/or jail-based treatment services for offenders with alcohol 
related convictions. LDWI funds may also support preventative treatment services and education for any 
community member.  All treatment services shall reduce the incidence of DWI,  alcoholism, alcohol 
abuse, alcohol misuse and alcohol-related domestic violence.  
 
Treatment providers must be licensed to practice in the State of New Mexico and must follow evidence-
based treatment practices. The Children, Youth and Families Department (CYFD) has the statutory 
authority to oversee the Court Ordered Domestic Violence Offender Treatment and Intervention Programs 
(DVOTI).  Any LDWI program funds used to supplement county DVOTI programs must adhere to the 
CYFD rule on DVOTI’s, NMAC 8.8.7.   DVOTI funded programs/personnel must participate in LDWI 
Planning Council meetings and coalition meetings.  
 
The LDWI funding supports evaluation of the progress and impact of this component.  
 
 
 
 
 



-10-

EXHIBIT “B” QUARTERLY REPORT CHECKLIST AND CERTIFICATION 
DISTRIBUTION/DWI GRANT 

Grantee: ______________________ Quarter: __________ 

To be completed by DWI Coordinator To be completed by LDWI Program Manager 
~Complete and submit electronically in quarterly report~ 

Grant: 
___Exhibit D & D(1) 
___Exhibit G     
___Exhibit G In-Kind 
___Backup Documentation 

Grant:             Received complete:____________ 
___Exhibit D & D(1) 
___Exhibit G     
___Exhibit G In-Kind 
___Backup Documentation 

Distribution: 
___Exhibit F & F(1) 
___Exhibit G     
___Exhibit G In-Kind 
___Backup Documentation 
___Backup Documentation of screening fees collected & spent 

Distribution:        Received complete:____________ 
___Exhibit F & F(1) 
___Exhibit G     
___Exhibit G In-Kind 
___Backup Documentation 
___ Backup Documentation of screening fees collected & spent 

___ Planning Council Meeting Agenda and Minutes (Signed) 
___ Planning Council Meeting Sign in Sheet(s) 

___ Planning Council Meeting Agenda and Minutes (Signed) 
___ Planning Council Meeting Sign in Sheet(s) 

___Successes/Challenges ___Successes/Challenges 

___ Evaluation Update Narrative ___ Evaluation Update Narrative 

~COMPLETE IN NOBLE~ ~REVIEW IN NOBLE~ 

___ Enter Law Enforcement activities in MDS 
___ Enter Prevention information in MDS 
___ Review MDS Report in NOBLE  

___Review MDS Report 
       ___ Law Enforcement 
       ___ Prevention 

___Review Database Quarterly Report in NOBLE ___Review Database Quarterly Report 

___ Review and confirm active users in NOBLE ___ Active users in NOBLE confirmed 

Under penalty of law, I hereby certify that all payments made from LDWI grant and distribution monies were verified and accounted 
for by locally implemented policies and controls; no “individually identifiable health information” as defined by the HIPAA 
Regulations has been included in the report; and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report 
is correct and true and that no other funding source is reimbursing these specific expenditures. 

     ____________________________    ___________________________      ________________ 
      Program Representative Signature     Print Name Date 

      ____________________________ ___________________________   ______________ 
      County/City Official Signature Print Name Date 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
FOR DFA USE ONLY 

I certify that I have reviewed the attached documents for accuracy. 

    ____________________________       ___________________________ ______________ 
    LDWI Program Manager Signature Print Name Date 



Exhibit C
Local DWI Grant Program

Revenue/Expenditure Summary
Grantee

Colfax County Total Grant 
Grant No.: 25-D-G-05

REVENUES BY EXPENDITURES BY Grant In-Kind Match** TOTAL
SOURCE LINE ITEM

PROGRAM
Local DWI Program Grant 35,000.00  Personnel Services 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Employee Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00
In-Kind Match:  Travel (In-State) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Program Generated Fees 2,000.00  Travel (Out-of-State) 0.00 0.00 0.00
County 3,750.00  Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00
City  Operating Costs 0.00 3,750.00 3,750.00
Judicial/Courts  Contractual Services 35,000.00 2,000.00 37,000.00
Other (list):  Minor Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Capital Purchases* 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL REVENUES 40,750.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 35,000.00 5,750.00 40,750.00

Administrative is allowed only as In-Kind Match
*Capital purchases must have prior approval from DFA/LDWI.
** In-Kind Match must be at least 10% of Grant Expenditure total

10%= 3,500.00  

$35,000.00

Revised: July 2024



Exhibit C (1)
LOCAL DWI GRANT PROGRAM
Request For Payment/Financial Status Report

Grant:  by Component
Budget

Community Wellness & Outreach 15,000.00
Treatment 20,000.00
Alternative Sentencing 0.00
Program Administration 0.00

Totals: 35,000.00

ck 35,000.00

In-Kind Match:
Budget

Community Wellness & Outreach 0.00
Treatment 5,750.00
Alternative Sentencing 0.00
Program Administration 0.00

Totals: 5,750.00

ck 5,750.00

Tot. Bud. Expd: 40,750.00 ck 40,750.00

505-445-9661
25-D-G-05

Colfax County
PO Box 1498
Raton, NM 87740

Revised: July 2024



Exhibit D

Payment Request No.: 1
I. A.   Grantee: II.    Payment:
   B.   Address:        A.   Grant  Award: $35,000.00

       B.   Funds  Received  To  Date: $0.00
       C.   Amount  Requested  This  Payment: $0.00

   C.   Telephone  No.:        D.   Grant  Balance: $35,000.00 35,000.00
   D.   Grant  No.: III.   Report  Period  Ending:  Enter Date--->

Budget Line Items Approved Expenditures Remaining Total YTD Approved Expenditures Remaining Total YTD
Budget This Request Budget Expenditures Budget This Request Budget Expenditures

   Personnel Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   Personnel Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Employee Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   Employee Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
   Travel (In-State) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00    Travel (In-State) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
   Travel (Out-of-State) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00    Travel (Out-of-State) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
   Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00    Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
   Operating Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00    Operating Costs 3,750.00 0.00 3,750.00 0.00
   Contractual Services 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00    Contractual Services 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00
   Minor Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00    Minor Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
   Capital Purchases* 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00    Capital Purchases* 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTALS 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00 5,750.00 0.00 5,750.00 0.00

 

Grantee Fiscal Officer (Printed Name and Title) Grantee Representive (Printed Name and Title)

 Grantee Fiscal Officer (Signature) Date Grantee Representive (Signature) Date

(DFA/Local Government Division Use Only)

 Local Government Division Fiscal Officer Date

        LOCAL DWI GRANT PROGRAM
Request For Payment/Financial Status Report

Grant In-Kind Match
25-D-G-05

Colfax County
PO Box 1498
Raton, NM. 87740

505-445-9661

Local Government Division Program Manager                                                Date

CERTIFICATION:  Under penalty of law, I hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, the above information is correct, expenditures are properly documented, required matching funds have been 
spent/obligated in the reported amount, and the copies of all required documentation are attached, or on file for review.  The documentation for this payment is true and reflects correct copies of the originals.  All payment 
requests listed are not funded by any other funding source.  The service provider shall not bill the grantee and another funding source for the same client at the same time.  

Budget Line Items

Revised: July 2024



LOCAL DWI GRANT PROGRAM Exhibit D (1)
Request for Payment/Financial Status Report

Breakdown By Component 

Grantee: Colfax County Total Grant Funds Requested This Request: 0.00
Grant No.: 25-D-G-05 Total In-Kind Match This Request: 0.00
Request No. 1 Total Expenditures Reported This Request: 0.00

Grant:
Budget This Request Remaining Budget Expenditures YTD

Community Wellness & Outreach 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00
Treatment 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00
Alternative Sentencing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Program Administration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Totals: 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00

In-Kind Match:
Budget This Request Remaining Budget Expenditures YTD

Community Wellness & Outreach 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Treatment 5,750.00 0.00 5,750.00 0.00
Alternative Sentencing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Program Administration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Totals: 5,750.00 0.00 5,750.00 0.00

Checks:
Total Expenditures This Reimbursement: 0.00 ↔ 0.00

Total Expenditures Year to Date: 0.00 ↔ 0.00

0

Revised: July 2024



Exhibit G- Grant

County/ Municipality: Total Grant Funds Requested This Request: 0.00
Grant No.: Total In-Kind Match This Request: 0.00
Request No.: Total Expenditures Reported This Request: 0.00

Grant Expenditures:

ADMINISTRATIVE
   Administrative expenses are not allowed.

PROGRAM
Personnel Services

Pay Period Name Job title Document Identifier Amount Component

Total Personnel Services: 0.00

Employee Benefits
Pay Period Name Job title Document Identifier Description Amount Component

Total Employee Benefits: 0.00

Travel (In-State)
Date of Travel & Location Traveler's Name Purpose of Travel Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Total Travel (In-State): 0.00

Exhibit G - Grant
Detailed Breakdown By Line Item

LOCAL DWI  PROGRAM

Page 1 Revised: July 2024



Exhibit G- Grant

Travel (Out-of-State)
Date of Travel & Location Traveler's Name Purpose of Travel Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Total Travel (Out-of-State): 0.00

Supplies (*List Prevention Giveaways/Promotional Items separately below)
Date Incurred Vendor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

 
     *Prevention Giveaways/Promotional Items

Total Supplies: 0.00

Operating Costs
Date(s) Incurred Vendor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Total Operating Costs: 0.00

Contractual Services
Period Covered Vendor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Total Contractual Services: 0.00

Minor Equipment
Date Incurred Vendor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Total Minor Equipment: 0.00

Page 2 Revised: July 2024



Exhibit G- Grant

Capital Purchases
Date Incurred Vendor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Total Capital Purchases: 0.00

Total Grant Fund Reimbursement Request: 0.00
Check: 0.00

DateTitleGrantee Representative (Signature)

I hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, the above information is correct, expenditures are properly documented, required matching funds have been 
spent/obligated in the reported amount, and that copies of all required documentation are attached.  The documentation for this payment is true and reflects correct 
copies of the originals.  I certify that the items listed in this report have not been billed or reported previously to the Local DWI Grant & Distribution program.  I certify that 
all payment requests listed are not funded by any other funding source and that the service provider shall not bill this grant/distribution fund and any other funding source 
for the same service provided to the same client at the same time.

Page 3 Revised: July 2024



Exhibit G - Grant In-Kind Match

County/ Municipality: 0 Total Grant Funds Requested This Request: 0.00
Grant No.: 0 Total In-Kind Match This Request: 0.00
Request No.: 0 Total Expenditures Reported This Request: 0.00

In-Kind Match Expenditures:

PROGRAM
Personnel Services

Pay Period Name Job Title Document Identifier Amount Component

Amount of 
Screening 
Fees Used

Total Personnel Services: 0.00

Employee Benefits

Pay Period Name Job Title Document Identifier Description Amount Component

Amount of 
Screening 
Fees Used

Total Employee Benefits: 0.00

Travel (In-State)

Date of Travel & Location Traveler's Name Purpose of Travel Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Amount of 
Screening 
Fees Used

Total Travel (In-State): 0.00

Travel (Out-of-State)

Date of Travel & Location Traveler's Name Purpose of Travel Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Amount of 
Screening 
Fees Used

Total Travel (Out-of-State): 0.00

Supplies

Exhibit G - Grant In-Kind Match
Detailed Breakdown By Line Item

LOCAL DWI  PROGRAM

Page 4 Revised: July 2024



Exhibit G - Grant In-Kind Match

Date Incurred Vendor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Amount of 
Screening 
Fees Used

Total Supplies: 0.00

Operating Costs

Date(s) Incurred Vendor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Amount of 
Screening 
Fees Used

Total Operating Costs: 0.00

Contractual Services

Date(s) Incurred Vendor / Contractor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Amount of 
Screening 
Fees Used

Total Contractual Services: 0.00

Minor Equipment

Date Incurred Vendor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Amount of 
Screening 
Fees Used

Total Minor Equipment: 0.00

Capital Purchases

Date Incurred Vendor Description Check Date Document Identifier Amount Component

Amount of 
Screening 
Fees Used

Total Capital  Purchases: 0.00

Total In-Kind Match: 0.00
Check: 0.00

Total Screening Fees: 0

I hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, the above information is correct, expenditures are properly documented, required matching funds have been spent/obligated 
in the reported amount, and that copies of all required documentation are attached.  The documentation for this payment is true and reflects correct copies of the originals.  I certify 

                                 
                               
  

Page 5 Revised: July 2024



















































































 
 
 
 
 

Board of 
Commissioners 

 
  

Dist. 1: Si Trujillo 
Chairman 

505-617-6893 
strujillo@co.colfax.nm.us 

Dist. 2: Mary Lou Kern 
Vice Chair 

505-617-6895 
kern@co.colfax.nm.us 

Dist. 3: Bret E. Wier 
Member 

505-652-0039 
bwier@co.colfax.nm.us 

 

County Manager – Monte K. Gore 
mgore@co.colfax.nm.us 

P.O. Box 1498 
Raton, New Mexico 87740 

Office. 575-445-9661 
Fax. 575-445-2902 

www.co.colfax.nm.us 
 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

RESOLUTION #2024-22 
 

ADOPTING THE FY 2026-2030 INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (ICIP) 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Colfax recognizes that the financing of public capital projects has become 
a major concern in New Mexico and na�onally; and 

WHEREAS, in �mes of scarce resources, it is necessary to find new financing mechanisms and 
maximize the use of exis�ng resources; and 

WHEREAS, systema�c capital improvements planning is an effec�ve tool for communi�es to define 
their development needs, establish priori�es and pursue concrete ac�ons and strategies 
to achieve necessary project development; and 

WHEREAS, this process contributes to local and regional efforts in project iden�fica�on and 
selec�on in short and long range capital planning efforts. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY OF COLFAX THAT: 

 

1. Colfax County has adopted the atached FY 2026-2030 Infrastructure Capital Improvement 
Plan, and 
 

2. It is intended that the Plan be a working document and is the first of many steps toward 
improving ra�onal, long-range capital planning and budge�ng for Colfax County's 
infrastructure. 
 

3. This Resolu�on supersedes Resolu�on No.2023-31. 

 

 

http://www.co.colfax.nm.us/


 
 
 
 
 

Board of 
Commissioners 

 
  

Dist. 1: Si Trujillo 
Chairman 

505-617-6893 
strujillo@co.colfax.nm.us 

Dist. 2: Mary Lou Kern 
Vice Chair 

505-617-6895 
kern@co.colfax.nm.us 

Dist. 3: Bret E. Wier 
Member 

505-652-0039 
bwier@co.colfax.nm.us 

 

County Manager – Monte K. Gore 
mgore@co.colfax.nm.us 

P.O. Box 1498 
Raton, New Mexico 87740 

Office. 575-445-9661 
Fax. 575-445-2902 

www.co.colfax.nm.us 
 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED IN OPEN MEETING THIS 25TH DAY OF JUNE 2024. 

 

COLFAX COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      SI TRUJILLO, CHAIRMAN 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      MARY LOU KERN, VICE-CHAIR 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      BRET WIER, MEMBER 

 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________________ 

RAYETTA M. TRUJILLO, CLERK OF THE BOARD 

http://www.co.colfax.nm.us/


Tuesday, June 18, 2024                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          Colfax County/ICIP 09000

Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan FY 2026-2030

Colfax County

Project Summary

Total Amount

Funded Project Not Yet

ID Year Rank Project Title Category to date 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 Cost Funded Phases?

41717 2026 001 Network Infrastructure Upgrades Equipment - Other 0 500,000 0 0 0 0 500,000 500,000 No

40808 2026 002 New Main Fire Station for Moreno Valley

Fire Distr

Facilities - Fire Facilities 0 3,000,000 0 0 0 0 3,000,000 3,000,000 No

42779 2026 003 Bridge Replacement-CR A62 Irrigation

Crossing

Transportation -

Highways/Roads/Bridges
0 216,000 0 0 0 0 216,000 216,000 No

14450 2026 004 Improve Low Water Crossing-Canadian

River/Tinaja

Transportation -

Highways/Roads/Bridges
0 1,750,000 0 0 0 0 1,750,000 1,750,000 No

42780 2026 005 New Colfax County Roads Department

Building

Facilities - Public Safety Facilities 0 860,000 0 0 0 0 860,000 860,000 No

42781 2026 006 Purchase & Equip Law Enforcement

Vehicles -Sheriff

Vehicles - Public Safety Vehicle 0 550,000 0 0 0 0 550,000 550,000 No

42782 2026 007 Purchase & Equip Transport Vehicles-

VMDC

Vehicles - Other 0 125,000 0 0 0 0 125,000 125,000 No

42783 2026 008 Purchase Angel Fire Airport Snow

Removal Equipment

Equipment - Public Safety

Equipment
0 412,000 0 0 0 0 412,000 412,000 No

42784 2027 001 Security Enhancements -Clerk & County

Office Bldgs

Equipment - Other 0 0 500,000 0 0 0 500,000 500,000 No

42785 2027 002 Parking Lot and Entry Improvements-

VMDC

Facilities - Other 0 0 400,000 0 0 0 400,000 400,000 No

10815 2027 003 Colfax County Courthouse Renovation Facilities - Administrative Facilities 0 0 855,500 0 0 0 855,500 855,500 No



Tuesday, June 18, 2024                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          Colfax County/ICIP 09000

Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan FY 2026-2030

42786 2027 004 Purchase & Equip Vehicle - Emergency

Management

Vehicles - Public Safety Vehicle 0 0 60,000 0 0 0 60,000 60,000 No

42787 2028 001 Purchase & Equip Vehicles - Road

Department

Vehicles - Public Safety Vehicle 0 0 0 225,000 0 0 225,000 225,000 No

42788 2028 002 Judicial Center Building &Parking Lot

Improvements

Facilities - Other 0 0 0 550,000 0 0 550,000 550,000 No

32828 2028 003 Developmentally Disabled Workshop

Building Improve

Facilities - Other 0 0 0 220,000 0 0 220,000 220,000 No

10067 2029 001 Colfax County Health Clinic

Projects/Upgrades

Facilities - Other 0 0 0 0 409,627 0 409,627 409,627 No

13218 2029 002 Taos Colfax Community Services

Projects/Upgrades

Facilities - Other 0 0 0 0 345,000 0 345,000 345,000 No

42789 2030 001 Enclose Disciplinary Unit at VMDC Facilities - Other 0 0 0 0 0 100,000 100,000 100,000 No

Number of projects: 18

Funded to date: Year 1: Year 2: Year 3: Year 4: Year 5: Total Project Cost: Total Not Yet Funded:

Grand Totals 0 7,413,000 1,815,500 995,000 754,627 100,000 11,078,127 11,078,127



 

 

New Entity Contacts with Access /  

Permission for Access - New Contact /  

CPMS User Access Form  
(Must be a political subdivision of the state - municipality, county, special district, tribe, or senior center facility.) 
 

 

 

Choose Entity Type from dropdown below: 
 

Entity Type:   
 

Special District Category:  

 
 

__________________________________________ (Entity Name) agrees to provide the following agency or 

individual the authority to enter/edit the Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP) database for the 2026-

2030 Plan for this entity. 
 

 

Person with signatory authority for this local government entity to give such permission (Please note: 
Cannot list same contact twice, all fields must be completed and this form expires one year after completed).  

 

  
Name: ___________________________________________ Title: _______________________________ 
        
Entity/Agency Name: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
City: __________________________________ State: ______ Zip: __________County: _______________ 
 
Phone: _____________________________ Email: ________________________________________________ 
 
Signature: __________________________________________ Date: _______________________________ 
 
 

 

 

 

Agency or individual who has been given authority to enter the ICIP data on behalf of said entity: 

 
Name: ___________________________________________ Title: _______________________________ 
        
Entity/Agency Name: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
City: __________________________________ State: ______ Zip: __________County: _______________ 
 
Phone: _____________________________ Email: ________________________________________________ 
 
Signature: __________________________________________ Date: _______________________________ 
 

☐ Current ICIP User  

☐ Additional ICIP User  

☐ New ICIP Entity  

☐ CPMS Access Only  



STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMININSTATION 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION 
2023 REGIONAL RECREATION CENTERS/QUALITY OF LIFE GRANT 

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENTAMENDMENT NO. 1 

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND 
ADMINISTRATION AND COLFAX COUNTY 

Subrecipient Agreement No. 23-ZH5053-12 
Project Title: Colfax County Event Center Upgrades 

THIS AMENDMENT, hereinafter referred to as the “Amendment,” is made and entered into by 
and between the Department of Finance and Administration, State of New Mexico, acting 
through the Local Government Division, Suite 202, Bataan Memorial Building, Santa Fe, New 
Mexico 87501, hereinafter referred to as the “Division” and the COLFAX COUNTY, hereinafter 
referred to as the  (“Subrecipient”). This Amendment shall be effective as of July 1, 2024. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on April 7, 2023, the Governor of New Mexico, Michelle Lujan Grisham 
signed into law the allocation of $40,000,000 for the Regional Recreation Centers/Quality of Life 
grants statewide; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee and the Division entered into a grant agreement, effective 
1/26/2024, in the amount of $940,000.00 for Colfax County Event Center Upgrades; and 

WHEREAS, on March 6, 2024, the Governor of New Mexico, Michelle Lujan 
Grisham signed into law to change the period of time for expending the state fiscal recovery 
fund award appropriation from June 30, 2024 to align with the State Fiscal Recovery Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee and the Division desire to memorialize through this Amendment 
the terms and conditions upon which the new reversion date is officially changed to June 30, 
2026. 

AMENDMENT 1 
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 

___________________ 
1 of 2 

file://DFAFSVR/lgdshare$/Community%20Development%20Bureau/2024%20Legislative/Amendments%20-%20Fed%20Funded%20GAs/SUBRECIPIENT%20AGREEMENT%20BETWEEN%20THE%20DEPARTMENT%20OF%20FINANCE%20AND%20ADMINISTRATION%20AND%20%C2%ABEntityName%C2%BB
file://DFAFSVR/lgdshare$/Community%20Development%20Bureau/2024%20Legislative/Amendments%20-%20Fed%20Funded%20GAs/SUBRECIPIENT%20AGREEMENT%20BETWEEN%20THE%20DEPARTMENT%20OF%20FINANCE%20AND%20ADMINISTRATION%20AND%20%C2%ABEntityName%C2%BB


AMENDMENT 1 
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 

___________________ 
2 of 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties do hereby execute this Amendment. 

_____________________ 
Date 

_____________________ 
Date 

THIS AMENDMENT has been approved by: 

SUBRECIPIENT: 

____________________________________ 
Chief Elected Official/Authorized Signatory 

_____________________________________ 
Print Name/Title 

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION 

____________________________________ 
Jeannette Gallegos 

_____________________________________ 
Acting Division Director

file://DFAFSVR/lgdshare$/Community%20Development%20Bureau/2024%20Legislative/Amendments%20-%20Fed%20Funded%20GAs/SUBRECIPIENT%20AGREEMENT%20BETWEEN%20THE%20DEPARTMENT%20OF%20FINANCE%20AND%20ADMINISTRATION%20AND%20%C2%ABEntityName%C2%BB
file://DFAFSVR/lgdshare$/Community%20Development%20Bureau/2024%20Legislative/Amendments%20-%20Fed%20Funded%20GAs/SUBRECIPIENT%20AGREEMENT%20BETWEEN%20THE%20DEPARTMENT%20OF%20FINANCE%20AND%20ADMINISTRATION%20AND%20%C2%ABEntityName%C2%BB

	June 25, 2024 Notice of Public Hearing.pdf
	June 25, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Ordinance 2024-03.pdf
	08. Indigent Care Claims.pdf
	09. Claim of Exemption #12, Maxwell Municipal Schools.pdf
	10. Claim of Exemption #7, Cross Diamond Cattle Co. LLC.pdf
	11. Lodger’s Tax Promotional Funding Request, Colfax Tavern, Run2Raton Kickoff Party.pdf
	11. Lodger’s Tax Non-Promotional Funding Request, Colfax Tavern, Run2Raton Kickoff Party.pdf
	12. State of NM Dept. of Finance & Adminstration Local Government Division DWI Grant Agreemnet # 25-D-G-05.pdf
	FY25 DWI Grant Agreement- Colfax.pdf
	B. Progress Reports
	C.   All payments will be made on a reimbursement of actual cost basis upon receipt by the Division of individual quarterly Progress Reports accompanied by the following completed forms: Request for Payment Form, attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and “D(...
	ARTICLE IX - SPECIAL CONDITIONS
	EXHIBIT “A”

	Grantee: ______________________    Quarter: __________


	13. Colfax County DWI Program Prevention Specialist Contract #06282024 - Danielle Jo Martinez.pdf
	14. Colfax County DWI Program Compliance Office Contract #06282024 - Jessica Candelario_0001.pdf
	15. Colfax County DWI Program Coordiantor Contract # 06282024, Ambrosia Trujillo.pdf
	16. Colfax County DWI Program Treatment Provider Contract # 06282024 - Tenelle Phillips.pdf
	17. Independent Contractor Agreement Between VMDC and Leona M Herrell FNP-C,PMHNP-BC.pdf
	18. Resolution # 2024-22, A Resolution Adopting the 2026-2030 Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP).pdf
	ICIP FY 2026-2030 Resolution 2024-22
	PROPOSED ICIP 2026-2030

	19. Permission for Access – New Contract, CPMS User Access Form for Additional ICIP User.pdf
	20. Regional Recreation Centers Quality of Life Grant Amendment No. 1, Colfax County Event Center Upgrades, 23-ZH5053-12.pdf
	21. Ordinance 2024-03.pdf
	22. Amendment to Financial Policy.pdf
	Colfax County supplement for internal control
	COLFAX COUNTY’S SUPPLEMENT (INTERNAL CONTROL) TO FINANCIAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE
	CHAPTER ONE: INTERNAL CONTROLS –WHO NEEDS THEM?
	A. The Role of the Financial Specialist
	Efficiency and effectiveness of operations Financial reporting
	C. What is Internal Control over Financial Reporting?
	Internal Control over Financial Reporting

	D. Why Do We Need Internal Controls?
	Encourage Sound Financial Management Practices
	Facilitate Preparation for Audits
	Fraud Prevention
	E. Effect of Information Technology on Internal Control3
	F. Limitations of Internal Control
	CHAPTER TWO: THE FIVE HORSEMEN OF INTERNAL CONTROL

	A. Control Environment
	Commitment to competence and human resources policies and practices.
	B. Risk Assessment
	Periods of Change
	Inherent Risks
	Evaluate Identified Risks
	Risk Response
	C. Control Activities
	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE UNIT
	D. Information and Communication
	E. Monitoring
	CHAPTER THREE: ACTIVITIES FOR THE CONTROLLING MIND

	A. Transaction Processing Errors and Frauds
	Seven Categories of Errors and Frauds

	B. Control Methods and Techniques
	Segregation of Duties
	1. Personnel and Payroll Activities
	2. Other Expenditure Activities
	3. Inventories
	4. Check Writing Activities
	5. Revenue Activities
	Access Controls
	Periodic Reconciliations
	Periodic Performance Comparisons
	Authority
	Documentation Control
	Supervision
	CHAPTER FOUR: ALL SYSTEMS GO

	A. Potential Benefits of Using IT in the Financial Reporting Process
	B. Potential Risks of Using IT in the Financial Reporting Process
	C. General Controls Versus Application Controls
	General Controls
	Application Controls
	D. The Role of the IT Specialist or Contractor
	CHAPTER FIVE: “THE PLAN”


	AN INTERNAL CONTROL EVALUATION AND MONITORING PLAN STEP 1: IDENTIFY WHO DOES WHAT
	STEP 2: DETERMINE WHAT TO EVALUATE
	STEP 3: DOCUMENT THE TRANSACTION PROCESSING CYCLES
	STEP 4: TEST THE CONTROLS
	STEP 5: EVALUATE FINDINGS AND REPORT THE RESULTS
	STEP 6: CONTINUOUS MONITORING
	CHAPTER SIX: TESTING, TESTING, 1-2-3

	ENTITY-LEVEL TESTS
	A. Document Review Governance Documents
	Code of Conduct
	Other Documentation
	B. Surveys and Inquiries Employee Surveys
	Management Inquiries
	C. General Computer Controls

	ACTIVITY-LEVEL TESTS
	A. Using Focus Groups
	B. Observation
	C. Re-performing Control Procedures
	D. Reconciliations
	E. Application Controls
	F. Summary
	CHAPTER SEVEN: THE BOTTOM LINE

	A. Judging the Severity of Internal Control Deficiencies
	• Likelihood of Misstatement
	Magnitude of Misstatement
	Strong Indicators of a Significant Weakness
	Strong Indicators of a Material Weakness
	B. Reporting Guidelines

	INTRODUCTION
	Authoritative Requirements
	Objective and Purpose

	ACCOUNTING OVERVIEW
	Accounting: The Language of Business
	Government versus Private Accounting: Measurement Focus & Basis of Accounting
	Fund Accounting
	Revenue and Expenditure Classification
	Annual Financial Report and Audit


	Budgeting Overview
	General Requirements
	Important Dates
	Budget Procedures

	GENERAL
	GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TYPES
	General Fund
	Expense Account Object Code Definitions
	Department Categories

	FINANCIAL SPECIALIST PROCEDURES
	Required Procedures

	SENIOR ACCOUNTANT OR CPA PROCEDURES
	Required Procedures

	ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PROCEDURES
	Required Procedures

	PAYROLL OFFICE PROCEDURES
	Required Procedures

	GRANTS ADMINISTRATION OFFICE PROCEDURES
	Required Grant Procedures PRE AWARD

	POST AWARD
	Authorization to Proceed Process:

	GRANT DELIVERY
	Purchases of goods and services: Purchases of goods:
	Manager sends Purchase Order Pre-Approval form with all backup to Grants Administrator for review as to compliance with terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.
	Securing services - sub-contracting procedures:
	Receipt of and Payment for goods and services:
	Requests for Reimbursement/Requests for Payment:
	Required Procedures for Capital Outlay Grants Requiring a Fiscal Agent PRE AWARD

	POST AWARD
	Authorization to Proceed Process:
	 Initiate Grant SOW. GRANT DELIVERY
	Purchases of goods and services: Purchases of goods:
	Securing services -- sub-contracting procedures:
	Receipt of and Payment for goods and services:
	Requests for Reimbursement/Requests for Payment:

	CASH MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES
	Required Procedures
	Cash Collections
	Fundraising-Cash Collections
	Balancing/Reconciling
	Preparation of Deposits

	INTERNAL CONTROL PROCEDURE CHECKLISTS
	APPENDIX A: INTERNAL CONTROL CHECKLISTS
	Control Activities Form for Financial Close and Reporting
	Control Activities Form for Revenue, Receivables, and Receipts—Governmental Funds
	§ 4-38-28. Payments without authority; liability of commissioners
	§ 4-38-29. Approving unauthorized account; penalty; recovery of money
	§ 6-6-7. Limitation on county expenditures during year official's term expires; exceptions Currentness
	N.M. Stat. Ann. § 6-6-7 (West)
	N.M. Stat. Ann. § 6-10-9 (West) Finance



	Colfax County compliance requirement for 2 CFR Part 200 (002)
	Overview
	Relationship between Frequently Asked Questions and the 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, Audit
	Use of Terminology
	Internal Control
	Improper Payments
	A. ACTIVITIES ALLOWED OR UNALLOWED
	Compliance Requirements
	Source of Governing Requirements
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Compliance

	B. ALLOWABLE COSTS/COST PRINCIPLES
	Applicability of Cost Principles
	Basic Guidelines
	Selected Items of Cost
	List of Selected Items of Cost Contained in 2 CFR part 200
	Suggested Internal Control Audit Procedures
	Indirect Cost Rate

	2 CFR PART 200
	Introduction
	Cognizant Agency for Indirect Costs
	Allowable Costs––Direct and Indirect Costs
	1. Compliance Requirements – Direct Costs
	2. Audit Objectives – Direct Costs
	3. Suggested Compliance Audit Procedures – Direct Costs
	1. Compliance Requirements – Indirect Costs
	2. Audit Objectives – Indirect Costs
	3. Suggested Compliance Audit Procedures – Indirect Costs
	Allowable Costs – State/Local Government-Wide Central Service Costs
	1. Compliance Requirements – State/Local Government-Wide Central Service Costs
	2. Audit Objectives – State/Local Government-Wide Central Service Costs
	3. Suggested Compliance Audit Procedures – State/Local Government-Wide Central Service Costs
	Allowable Costs – State Public Assistance Agency Costs
	1. Compliance Requirements – State Public Assistance Agency Costs
	2. Audit Objectives – State Public Assistance Agency Costs
	3. Suggested Compliance Audit Procedures – State Public Assistance Agency Costs

	CASH MANAGEMENT
	Compliance Requirements
	Cost-Reimbursement Contracts under the Federal Acquisition Regulation
	Loans, Loan Guarantees, Interest Subsidies, and Insurance
	Pass-through Entities
	Source of Governing Requirements
	Availability of Other Information
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Compliance

	ELIGIBILITY
	Compliance Requirements
	Source of Governing Requirements
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Compliance

	EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
	Compliance Requirements
	Real Property Management – Grants and Cooperative Agreements
	Equipment and Real Property Management – Cost-Reimbursement Contracts under the Federal Acquisition Regulation
	Source of Governing Requirements
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Compliance

	MATCHING, LEVEL OF EFFORT, EARMARKING
	Compliance Requirements
	Source of Governing Requirements
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Compliance
	2. Level of Effort
	3. Earmarking

	PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE
	Compliance Requirements
	Source of Governing Requirements
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Compliance

	PROCUREMENT AND SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT
	Compliance Requirements - Procurement
	2. Procurement—Cost-Reimbursement Contracts under the Federal Acquisition Regulation
	Source of Governing Requirements – Procurement
	Compliance Requirements – Suspension and Debarment
	Source of Governing Requirements – Suspension and Debarment
	National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA) of 2017and 2018
	Availability of Other Information
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Compliance

	PROGRAM INCOME
	Compliance Requirements
	Source of Governing Requirements
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Compliance
	Compliance Requirements
	Source of Governing Requirements
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Compliance Requirements
	Source of Governing Requirements
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Internal Control
	Suggested Audit Procedures – Compliance

	SPECIAL TESTS AND PROVISIONS
	Compliance Requirements
	Internal Control
	Audit Objectives
	Suggested Audit Procedures



	23. Update Colfax County Travel Policy.pdf
	24. State of NM Professional Services Agreement Between Colfax County and MRS Monitoring and Recovery Services.pdf
	25. Professional Services Agreement Between Colfax County and Abe Balsamo & Co..pdf
	26. Professional Services Contract Pursuant to RFP 2022-05 Between Colfax County & Abe Balsamo & Co.pdf
	27. Professional Services Agreement Between Colfax County and The Citizens For The Developmentally Disabled.pdf
	28. Professional Services Agreement Between Colfax County and Colfax County Senior Citizens Inc..pdf
	29. Professional Services Agreement Between Colfax County and Piedra Lumbre Excavations.pdf
	30. Professional Services Agreement Between Colfax County and The village of Eagle Nest.pdf
	32. Professional Services Contract Between County of Colfax and Molzen Corbin & Associates Inc..pdf

	Current ICIP User: Off
	Additional ICIP User: On
	New ICIP Entity: Off
	CPMS Access Only: Off
	Entity Name agrees to provide the following agency or: Colfax County
	Name: Si Trujillo
	Title: Colfax County Commission Chairman
	EntityAgency Name: Colfax County
	Address: PO Box 1498 / 230 N 3rd St
	City: Raton
	State: NM
	Zip: 87740
	County: Colfax
	Phone: 575-445-9661
	Email: strujillo@co.colfax.nm.us
	Date: 
	Name_2: Tarin Giacomo
	Title_2: Grant Writer/Special Projects Manager
	EntityAgency Name_2: Colfax County
	Address_2: PO Box 1498 / 230 N 3rd St
	City_2: Raton
	State_2: NM
	Zip_2: 87740
	County_2: Colfax
	Phone_2: 575-445-9661
	Email_2: tgiacomo@co.colfax.nm.us
	Date_2: 
	Dropdown4: [County ]
	Dropdown5: [Other (Not listed)]


